
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 

phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 
 

Date: 
 

Thursday, 30 September 2021 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Virtual Meeting 

 
22 September 2021 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

  
 i)  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
ii)  Other Interests.  

 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Progress on the External Audit of the Accounts (oral update from Grant Thornton)  

5. Treasury Management Update (Pages 9 - 22) 

6. Internal Audit Progress Report (To Follow) 

7. Internal Audit Annual Report (To Follow) 

8. Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (To Follow) 

9. Redmond Review Update (Pages 23 - 40) 

10. Nomination for Mayor 2022/23 (To Follow) 

11. Work Programme (Pages 41 - 42) 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Councillor E Thrane (Chair) Councillor O Cross (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor J Collins Councillor J Douglas 
Councillor E Longden Councillor R Quinn 

Councillor K Savage Councillor F Sloman 
Councillor G Wharmby Mr M Thomas 
Mr J Scampion  

 

Public Document Pack



 



1 
 

 

 
 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 23 June 2021 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, 

Buxton 

 

Present: Councillor E Thrane (Chair)   
 

 Councillors J Collins, O Cross, J Douglas, E Longden, R Quinn, K Savage, 

F Sloman and G Wharmby 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Mr M Thomas 
 

Councillors Barrow and A McKeown and Mr J Scampion (Independent 

Member) were also in attendance 
 

22/01 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 3) 
 

Members were requested to complete the Knowledge & Skills Framework 
self-assessment previously sent to committee members in March if they had 

not already done so, which would assist in both the co-option of 
independent members and the future development requirements for the 
committee. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
22/02 EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT PLAN 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The Committee were presented with the External Audit – Audit Plan, the 

scope of which included forming an opinion on the preparation of the 
Council’s financial statements and the value for money arrangements in 
place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of resources.  Areas of significant risks had been identified and were 
set out within the report, together with the proposed response to those risks.  

It was noted that the Audit Findings report may slip in the timetable from 
September to October, and it was requested that, should this happen, the 
dates of committee meetings be aligned accordingly. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Audit Plan be noted. 
 

22/03 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 23 June 2021 

 

2 
 

The report contributed towards the effective two-way communication 
between the external auditors and the committee and covered some 
important areas of the audit risk assessment.  Also set out within the report, 

were a series of questions to ascertain whether management’s responses 
were consistent with the Committee’s understanding of the Council’s 

oversight and management of fraud, regulation, related parties and 
accounting estimates.  Discussion took place around the meaning of 
financial instruments and the accounting arrangements for the grants paid 

through the various Covid grant schemes, which the committee should be 
briefed on.  Consideration would be given to training sessions being held to 

improve the committee’s understanding of technical issues.   
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the report be noted. 

 
22/04 ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND S151 OFFICER (ORAL) 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

The Chair advised that Claire Hazeldene, Acting Executive Director of 
Finance was due to leave the authority shortly to take up a new role, and 
conveyed the thanks of members to Claire and wished her well for the 

future. 
 
The Executive Director post had been advertised and arrangements were in 

hand for shortlisting, with interviews to be undertaken via a joint Selection 
Panel from SMDC and HPBC.  The Head of Finance role had been 

advertised internally.   
 
Members were introduced to John Betts who had been appointed Interim 

Executive Director of Finance and S151 Officer who would be in post until 
Christmas to ensure a smooth hand over of responsibilities. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the update be noted. 
 

 
22/05 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 

The Committee scrutinised the Council’s Treasury Management 

performance in 2020/21 and compliance with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and generally accepted good practice.  The debt maturity 

profile and the one-pool approach to borrowing costs were discussed. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That Council be recommended to approve the Annual Treasury 

Management Report 2020/21. 
 Page 4




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 23 June 2021 

 

3 
 

 
 

22/06 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 

The Committee scrutinised the Council’s Treasury Management 
performance this financial year (to 31st May 2021) in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice.  
Consideration was given to the Council’s ethical investments and the need 

for financial institutions to offer more choice, and it was suggested that this 
section of the report be considered further at the Climate Change Working 
Group. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the current Treasury Management position as at 31 May 2021 be 
noted. 

 
22/07 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 

The Committee considered the performance of internal audit in relation to its 

plan as required by The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require 
the Council to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 

taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” 
 

The thanks of the Committee were conveyed to the Audit Team for keeping 
up with the audit work as well as being involved in the Covid 19 business 
grant processes. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the report be noted. 
 

22/08 INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

(Agenda Item 10) 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 

management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. The Audit Charter provides 

a framework for the operation of the Internal Audit service and is required by 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which require the 
Charter to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the 

Audit & Regulatory Committee.  It was noted that mainly non-technical 
changes had been made in this review of the charter. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the updated Internal Audit Charter be approved. 
 Page 5




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 23 June 2021 

 

4 
 

 
22/09 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN - INTERNAL AUDIT 

(Agenda Item 11) 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk 
based audit plan to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, 

consistent with the Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a 
documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually. 
 

The auditing of the grants distributed through the Covid 19 business grant 
schemes was discussed, to which members were advised of the pre and 

post payment checking role already undertaken by the audit team during the 
process, also including process review and the prevention of fraud. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 be approved. 
 

22/10 BUSINESS GRANTS 

(Agenda Item 12) 
 

The Committee considered a report which provided details around the 

Business Grants process and mitigation measures in regard to the potential 
risk of fraud or mis-payment.   

 
Specific reference was made to paragraph 8.14 of the report which set out 
the number and value of grants paid out under each scheme, which 

demonstrated the magnitude of the process undertaken with a total of 
10,683 applications being dealt with and £48,727,677 being paid out. 

 
Members congratulated officers across the Council for all their hard work in 
successfully managing the grants process in such a timely and efficient 

manner.   
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 

 
22/11 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE 

(Agenda Item 13) 
 

The Committee were briefed in regard to the requirements of the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Financial Management 
Code.  It was noted that this was not currently a legislative requirement, but 

recognised good practice. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
Page 6




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 23 June 2021 

 

5 
 

That the report and recommendation for a full self-assessment against the 
principles of the CIPFA Financial Management code be noted. 
 

22/12 COUNTER FRAUD & CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

(Agenda Item 14) 
 

The Committee considered the updated Counter Fraud & Corruption 
Strategy which demonstrates the Council’s zero tolerance to any form of 

fraudulent activity and is in accordance with the Council’s commitment to the 
highest standards of integrity. 

 
It was suggested that a short guide to all policies of this nature be produced 
to inform staff. 

 
Resolved: 

 
That the Council’s updated Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy be 
approved. 

 
22/13 WORK PROGRAMME 

(Agenda Item 15) 
 

The dates of meetings may need to be reviewed in the light of reporting 

schedules. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That, subject to the above, the Committee’s work programme be noted. 

 
 
The meeting concluded at 7.55 pm 

 
 

 
 
 
CHAIR 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

30 September 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Update 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 
Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-specific 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 

Report, 31st August 2021 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury Management 
performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 

and generally accepted good practice. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st 
August 2021. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the Council in March 2010. 

This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which is to produce at 
least one mid-year operational report. 

3.2 This report comprises the following: 

 The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19; 

 Investment income earned to date and projected for the year; 

 The current investment portfolio; 

 An update to the approved capital programme; and the projected borrowing 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



  

requirements with associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2021/22. 

3.3 The main headlines are: 

 There is no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 

within the medium term. 

 Investment interest income are forecast to be on target against the budgets as 

the low interest environment was anticipated at budget setting. 

 A small saving on borrowing costs is forecast due to a smaller MRP charge 
resulting from an reduction in the capital borrowing requirement in the previous 

year and the split to the HRA under the one pool approach. 

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council to the end of 

August was 0.17%, this was boosted by the notice account investments, 
whereas instant access accounts earn interest at 0.01%. 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £25million spread across seven 
separate institutions as at 31st August 2021. 

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st August was £66.8million at an 

average annual borrowing rate of 3.92%.   

 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1   An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 

financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities. 
 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 

Council for 20201/22 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is a 
statement of fact and there are no options. 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 

None 
 

6.2 Workforce 

 

Page 10



  

None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s 

Diversity and Equality policies. 
 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 

Included throughout the report 
 
 

6.5 Legal 
 

None 
 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 

Ethical investing under Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) is considered within the report. 
 

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 

None 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with 

Treasury Management activity, not least the potential for loss of 
interest and/ or deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the 

services of external Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset 
Services (‘Link’). 
 

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with 
the Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. 

That Strategy includes a number of risk management features such 
as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes precedence 
over return on investment. 

 
 

 
John Betts 

Interim Executive Director (Chief FInance Officer) 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

‘Treasury Management – Governance & Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ (Audit & Regulatory Committee September 
2009) 

Keith Pointon 
Head of Finance 

Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk  

Page 11

mailto:Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


  

 
‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22’ (Audit & 
Regulatory Committee, February 2021) 

Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

  
 

 

Page 12



  

Appendix A 
          
            

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Treasury Management Update  

31
st

 August 2021 
 

 
 
1. Introduction  

 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management 

 

4. Investment Income 
 

5. Investment Portfolio 
 

6. Capital Programme and Borrowing Position 

 
7. Prudential Indicators 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 13



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management which recommends that Members should be briefed on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year. 

 
1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 

treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 
management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee 

are reported to full Council. 
 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was 

approved by Council on 10th February 2021. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st August 2021 and projects forward for 

the remainder of the financial year. 
 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 

base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast: 

 

% 
Sep-

21 

Dec-

21 

Mar-

22 

Jun-

22 

Sep-

22 

Dec-

22 

Mar-

23 

Jun-

23 

Sep-

23 

Dec-

23 

Mar-

24 

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 

5yr PWLB 

rate 
1.20 1.20 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.50 1.50 

10r PWLB 
rate 

1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 

25yr PWLB 
rate 

1.90 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 

50yr PWLB 
rate 

1.70 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 

 

2.2. Link’s interest rate forecast has brought the Bank of England base rate increase 
to 0.25% forward by one quarter to the quarter ending June 2023, but still does 

not anticipate any rate rises during the current or next financial year. PWLB 
rates are also forecast to remain relatively constant, with a slow increase. The 
Council’s budgets were set anticipating this economic environment. 
 

3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management 

 
3.1. High volumes of income and expenditure are still flowing through the Council’s 

instant access accounts while the Council continues to act as an agent of 

central government in the delivery of the various Business Grant schemes. The 

Page 14



  

counterparty limits in the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
were set to be flexible to respond to this situation specifically; the current 
account balance has remained within the set limit up to the end of August. 
 

4. Investment Income  

 
4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st August 2021 totalled £21,030. 

The Council has budgeted to receive £40,290 in investment income in 2021/22. 

The budget was set with an expectation of very low interest rates of near zero, 
therefore the forecast outturn against the budget remains on target.  

 
4.2. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments is boosted by 

the better rates achieved in the Council’s notice accounts, average 0.33%, 

compared to the instant access average of 0.01%. 
 

Average interest rate period 
Average Rate 

Apr-Jun 
Average Rate 

Jul-Aug 

Overall 0.16% 0.17% 
Long-term fixed (>364 days)  n/a n/a 
Short-term fixed/ notice accounts (<364 days) 0.31% 0.33% 
Instant access 0.01% 0.01% 
   

   

Bank of England Base Rate 0.10% 0.10% 

 
Crescent Development 

 
4.3. The Council provided a loan of £250,000 to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 

as part of the Crescent development. Interest is charged on the loan at 6% 

which amounts to £15,000 during 2021/22. This income is in additional to the 
investment income forecast outturn reported above. 
 

5. Investment Portfolio 

 

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 

investment portfolio at 31st August 2021 totalled £25,031,000: 
 

Financial Institution 
Country 

of 

Domicile 

Amount 
Maximum 

recommended lending 

duration 

Interest 
rate at end 

of period 

Average 
Maturity 

NatWest Bank UK £10,790,000* BLUE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Santander UK £6,300,000 RED (6 months) 0.58% 180 day notice 

Aberdeen MMF UK £5,000,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Federated MMF UK £3,500,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Lloyds Bank UK £3,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.05% 95 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £3,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.30% 95 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £2,200,000 RED (6 months) 0.10% 65 day notice 

Page 15



  

Standard Chartered 
‘Sustainable’ 

UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.13% 184 days 

TOTAL  £34,790,000    
 

MMF = Money Market Fund 
* Higher balances than usual held in the current account at month end due to the timing of income direct debits 
before month end and outgoing precept payments after. 

 
5.2. The average level of funds available for investment up to 31st August 2021 was 

£29.7million. Both average balances for the year and the total portfolio at the 

end of August 2021 are larger than usual due Covid 19 grants being held whilst 
business grant schemes are administered. The net balance of funds held at the 

end of August was £2.4million. 
 
Ethical investing 

 
5.3. The Council currently holds £6.2million in financial investments with 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) links, sometimes known as 
Ethical Investing and encompassing the Climate Change agenda. These are 
included in the investment portfolio table above, but are also highlighted here: 

 

Product Amount ESG merits 

Barclays ‘Green’  

(95 day notice 
account) 

£3,000,000 Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which 
covers ‘a variety of thematic projects including energy efficiency, 

renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture 
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission 
reduction’. 

Barclays ‘Green’  
(65 day notice 
account) 

£2,200,000 

Standard Chartered 
‘Sustainable’ Deposit 

(6 month fixed term) 

£1,000,000 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and 
Sustainable Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero 

hunger; good health and well-being; quality education; gender 
equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean energy; 
decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and 

infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 
communities; responsible consumption and production; climate 
action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong 

institutions; partnerships for the goals'. 

TOTAL £6,200,000 17.82% of total portfolio 

 

5.4. A Notice of Motion relating to Climate Change was presented and supported at 
Full Council on 16th February 2021 which has implications on the Council’s 

treasury management investment portfolio. Each point of action in the Notice of 
Motion is responded to here with updates as to the work or progress being 
undertaken to address the resolutions. Progress will continue to be monitored in 

each Treasury Management update report. 
 

Notice of Motion Action Action Update / Response 

Develop a plan by September 2021 

to cease investing in companies 
involved directly or indirectly with 
the fossil fuel industry.  

In order to put a plan into place to cease investing / replace 

investment funds, the Council would need to have a mechanism in 
place to easily assess investment funds in order to determine which 
meet the criteria. 

The criteria would also need to be established – this will possibly 

Page 16



  

need to be jointly agreed via the Audit Committee / Climate Change 

working group.  This criteria can then be inputted into a scoring 
mechanism to determine eligible funds. 
Ultimately, the Council would need to ensure that when investing, 

the principles of SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for 
primarily.  
 

Link, the Council’s Treasury advisors, are currently developing a 
service which will be a vital input into the suitability assessment of 
any potential investment in terms of its Environmental, Social and 

Governance (ESG) merits. This could be either as an overlay to the 
creditworthiness system which protects the SLY criteria with a 
general score weighting; or a more detailed service with specific 

focuses to suit the Council’s objectives.  
We are awaiting a survey from Link where we will have the 
opportunity to assign relevance scores to each ESG risk factor 

which will feed into the service’s outputs. These relevance scores 
will be informed by the criteria to be established as discussed 
above. 

 

Add a clear statement to their 
published strategy, at the next 
review date, regarding their 

approach to investments at risk 
from climate change, including 
those at risk due to the actions of 
other investors and governments. 

A statement in regard to investments and the increased use of ESG 
investments particularly was included in the 2021/22 Treasury 
Management Strategy.  This will be updated and enhanced annually 

and will, in future, incorporate any changes made to the 
creditworthiness systems as detailed above. 

Draw up a plan to replace HPBC’s 

investment funds which include 
environmentally harmful 
investments with investment funds 

that have positive societal and 
environmental benefits, by 
September 2021. 

As above – see first action response. 

 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the 
principles of SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for 

primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be 
defined, with input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change 

working group as appropriate.  

Replace HPBC’s environmentally 
harmful investments and funds with 
investments that have positive 

societal and environmental benefits, 
towards achieving a portfolio of 
assets with net zero carbon 

emissions by 2025 (with 
consideration of the council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy and 

principals around security, liquidity 
and yield priorities when investing 
funds). 

As above – see first action response. 
 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the 

principles of SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for 
primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be 

defined, with input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change 
working group as appropriate. 
 

Explore non-financial investments, 

such as in renewable energy 
generation 

 

This will need to be assessed as a specific project as part of the 

Climate Change action plan, with a full business case required to 
determine viability.  
This action point will need to be monitored outs ide Treasury 

Management reporting, in the appropriate arena for the projects 
undertaken. 

Include risks associated with 
specific types of investment, such 

as in extractive industries, in its risk 
assessments 

 

Many of the counterparties regularly used by Councils do not have 
ESG “scores” assigned to them as yet.  It is growing, but by no 

means universal.  Once Link have developed their enhanced 
creditworthiness service to incorporate a scoring system for ESG 
investments, the Audit Committee / Climate Change working group 

will need to work through how funds will be assessed, both at the 
selection stage and then monitoring thereafter. 

Include progress on Environmental, The Treasury Management update reports and Treasury 

Page 17



  

Social and Governance investing in 

regular reports to the Audit and 
Regulatory Committee.    

 

Management Strategy now include specific updates in regard to 

ESG investments. 

Write to the Derbyshire Pensions 

and Investment Committee 
requesting that they divest pension 
funds from investment funds that 

include fossil fuels by 2025. 

 

Response received from the Chair of the Pensions & 

Investment Committee: 
 
The Fund’s Climate Strategy was approved by Committee in 

November 2020, following consultation with the Pension Fund’s 
stakeholders.  It sets out support for the Paris Agreement and 
includes clear targets for reducing the carbon emissions of the 

whole investment portfolio and for increasing investment in low 
carbon and sustainable investments.  A Responsible Investment 
Framework was also approved at the same time, setting out the 

Pension Fund’s commitment to integrating Environmental, Social 
and Governance factors into investment decisions and engaging 
with companies to influence behaviour and enhance value, influence 

that would be lost through a divestment approach.  Collaborative 
and co-ordinated engagement with other like-minded investors, has 
the potential to drive positive changes to companies’ business 

models as they adapt for the transition to a low carbon economy. 
 
The Pension Fund’s Climate Strategy includes a target for reducing 

the carbon footprint of the Fund’s listed equity portfolio by at least 
30% by the end of 2025 and a target to invest at least 30% of the 
Fund’s portfolio in low carbon and sustainable inves tments by the 

end of 2025.  These targets will be reviewed on at least a three 
yearly basis.  I am pleased to note that the first phase of increasing 
the equity allocation to sustainable and low carbon investments took 

place earlier this year, with further transitions planned for later this 
year.  Also, Committee recently approved a further commitment to a 
renewable energy infrastructure fund which will help towards the 

target of having 50% of the Fund’s 10% allocation to infrastructure 
invested in renewable energy assets.  These assets will include 
investments in: onshore wind; offshore wind; solar; hydro; and 

battery storage.  
 

Progress against the targets set out in the Fund’s Climate Strategy 

will be presented to the Pensions and Investments Committee, and 
the Pension Fund’s approach to managing the risks and 
opportunities presented by climate change will stay firmly on 

Committee’s agenda.   

 
5.5. There has been no further progress on the action points since the last report. 

Link continue to work on the service they may be able to deliver to the Council; 

part of the delay due to waiting for the outcome of the Cipfa consultation and its 
potential impact on this area. They still aim to be developing a service by the 

end of the financial year. The treasury management team remains in dialogue 
to see how they may assist the Council in achieving its aims. 
 

5.6. The Treasury Management team continue to consider investments with ESG 
links where available and appropriate. After this reporting period a further 

£1million has been invested in Standard Chartered Sustainable fixed term at 
0.08% for six months which increases the overall proportion of ESG linked 
investments in the portfolio to 20%. No new ESG linked products have emerged 

in the local authority market at this time. 
 
6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 

Page 18



  

 
 

Capital Programme Update 
 

6.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 
funding: 
 

 
TMSS 2021/22 

Estimate 

Current 
Estimate 

(includes 20/21 
carry forwards) 

General Fund  £8,399,000 £8,443,000 
HRA £6,292,000 £7,879,000 
Total Capital Expenditure £14,691,000 £16,322,000 
   
Funded by:   
    Capital Receipts £636,000 £855,000 
    External Funding £3,762,000 £4,006,000 
    Reserves £2,099,000 £2,149,000 
    HRA Revenue £4,193,000 £5,077,000 
2021/22 Net Financing Requirement £4,001,000 £4,235,000 
   
Capital Financing Requirement   
  Opening CFR £80,871,000 £80,541,000 

    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £4,001,000 £4,235,000 
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£1,845,000) (£1,836,000) 
  Closing CFR £83,027,000 £82,705,000 

 

6.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2021/22 spend is now estimated at 
£4,235,000: the variance is due to the reprofiling of elements of the capital 
programme from the previous year, some due to delays resulting from the Covid 

19 situation. 
 

6.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to ensure 
that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR represents 
the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from 

either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's 
underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure and is derived by 

aggregating specified items for the Council's balance sheet. The closing CFR is 
in line with the Capital Financing Requirement set in the Treasury Strategy 
Statement. On the basis of the latest forecasts, the Council's capital investment 

plans remain affordable. 
 

 

 

Borrowing Position 

 
6.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 

Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement. 
 

6.5. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st August 2021 is £66,825,404, as 
detailed in the table below: 

Page 19



  

 
 

Lender 
External 

Borrowing 
Average 

Interest Rate 
Maturity period 

Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% between 1 and 42 years 

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 2 and 47 years 

Total £66,825,404 3.92%  

 

6.6. The ‘operational boundary’ (£89,960,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£92,460,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing available to the 
Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of borrowing is within 

prudential limits. 
 

6.7. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby investments 
and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional income and 
expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The Council has 

budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of £1,824,340 to the 
general fund and £1,693,060 to the HRA in 2021/22. The forecast outturn 

shows a favourable variance on the general fund of £17,000, partly due to a 
£9,000 smaller MRP charge than predicted and partly due to an additional 
charge to the HRA of £8,000 for its share of net borrowing costs due to the 

change in share of the pool. 
 

6.8. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt. There 
has been no ‘new’ borrowing thus far during the current year and the Council 
continues to maintain a level of internal borrowing as anticipated. The treasury 

team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally borrow based on 
the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, considering the 
movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any borrowings taken. 

 
6.9. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 

maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates are 
high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

 
 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Less than
1 year*

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50

years

Debt Maturity Profile 

Page 20



  

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBO’s is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of 
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.  

 

6.10. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the risk.  

The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for debt 
rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council. 

 
6.11. No rescheduling has taken place during 2021/22 to date.  The Council will work 

with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking account of 

the premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption compared to 
the potential interest savings.   

 

7. Prudential Indicators 

 

7.1. The Council complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and 
has operated within the treasury management and prudential indicators set in 
its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22. 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

30 September 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Redmond Review Update 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Betts - Interim Executive Director 

Finance and Revenues & Benefits 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
Non Specific  

 
 

Appendices Attached – Table of Redmond review recommendations and 
MHCLG response / progress 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 Concern has been growing within local government (and elsewhere) regarding 
the effective provision of external audit services. This report updates the 
committee on various national reviews affecting local public audit and their 

implications for the Local Authority as well as updates on options and the 
timetable for appointing future external auditors set by the Public Sector Audit 

Authority (PSAA).     
 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee:  
 

 Notes the progress that the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) has made in responding to Sir Tony Redmond's 
review into the effectiveness of external audit and transparency of financial 

reporting in local authorities 

 Approves the proposal for further reports to this committee recommending 

any changes locally to current audit and governance processes, once 
MHCLG has finalised its proposed actions nationally 

 Notes the need for a recommendation by this committee to Council by 

Friday 11th March 2022 to formally respond and accept (or decline) the 

opt-in invitation from Public Sector Audit Authority (PSAA) to join the 

procurement of bulk external audit services (this will be the subject of a 

separate report)     

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



  

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The current local audit environment is a fragile system. The National Audit 

Office has recently concluded that the local audit system has worsened since 

2019, with an increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit quality and 

doubts over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities all 

highlighting that the situation needs urgent attention. System wide changes 

are required. A number of reviews recently commissioned by central 

Government have attempted to respond to this (or have influenced thinking on 

proposed solutions). The most important of these has been Sir Tony 

Redmond's review into the effectiveness of external audit and transparency of 

financial reporting in local authorities. A summary of the Redmond review was 

previously reported to this committee in November 2020.  

3.2 Since then, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) has responded to the review. A summary of the response and 

progress to date is given at Annex A to this report. Little has been finalised, 

other than a two year extension to the deadline for publishing audited local 

authority accounts. An additional £15 million has also been provided to help 

meet the anticipated increase in audit fee costs in 2021/22 and to support with 

new burdens relating to implementing Redmond’s recommendations. Most of 

the other recommendations are subject to further consultation with key 

national stakeholders. Further reports will be required so that this committee 

can respond appropriately to all recommendations, when MHCLG finalises its 

responses. 

3.3 One key decision by MHCLG was to reject Redmond’s recommendation for a 

new, independent “systems leader” body, the Office of Local Audit and 

Regulation (OLAR). Instead, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority 

(ARGA), which is the successor regulatory authority to the Financial Reporting 

Council (FRC), will be strengthened with new powers over local government 

audit. The existing Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) will continue as 

the appointing body for local audit, in charge of procurement and contract 

management for local government auditors. It is unclear how this solution 

responds effectively to Redmond’s concerns regarding system-wide 

leadership, audit supply and market instability, and practical issues such as  

accelerating qualification of new auditors and building attractive career paths. 

This is a concern shared by the House of Commons Public Accounts 

Committee (PAC).  

3.4 The Council will need to make an important decision about its external audit 

arrangements for the period commencing from the financial year 2023/24. In 

relation to appointing auditors, it can:  

 arrange its own procurement  

Page 24



  

 make the appointment itself or in conjunction with others 

 join the national collective scheme (currently administered by Public 

Sector Audit Appointments [PSAA] 

3.5 PSAA will publish a prospectus for the proposed, new national scheme in late 

September 2021 and the Local Authority will have until Friday 11th March 

2022 to formally respond and accept (or decline) the opt-in invitation to 

nationally brokered local audit contracts (as it currently does). If it is well 

designed and implemented, the national scheme should be simpler and likely 

to deliver lower fees with less administrative cost and less effort, than would 

be achievable through a local procurement. However, a more formal report will 

come to the committee in February 2022 (with a recommendation to Council in 

the same month), once the PSAA prospectus is received and analysed.         

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 An effective external audit service will help ensure the Council uses resources 

effectively and provide value for money.  
 
5.       Options and Analysis 

 

5.1 The report is primarily for information at this stage, but the options available for 

procuring external audit services are summarised in para. 3.4 above and a 
further report will recommend a way forward.    
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

No Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

There are no direct financial implications from this report, although the 
likelihood is that audit fees will increase. Nationally, the Government has 

pledged £15 million to contribute towards the additional costs associated 
with implementing Redmond’s recommendations. 
   

6.5 Legal 
Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 

requires that a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting of the 
Council. 
 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 

 

Page 25



  

6.7   External Consultation 
  None   

 

6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 
There are no immediate risks to the Council, but if nationally the new regime 

fails to provide effective system-wide leadership then there is the risk that 
audit firms will leave the market, meaning viable external audit of local 
government becomes unviable.  There are no actions that a single Local 

Authority can do to mitigate this risk; hence the need for system-wide 
leadership.  

 
 

JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 

 

 

Moorlands House 

 

John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 
07581 010628 

 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 26

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

Update on Reviews, Progress & Impact of Proposed Changes to the Local 
Audit System  
 

7. Background  
 

7.1. From 1 April 2015, local public bodies in England have been required to 

appoint their own auditors to audit their accounts annually. This system was 

introduced by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and came into 

being following the abolition of the Audit Commission. As part of that 

overhaul, there was a shift to a position which involved private audit firms 

bidding for blocks of work (previously there had been a mix of public and 

private).  
 

7.2. The 2014 Act allowed the Government to nominate a body to appoint auditors 

to those local authorities which ‘opt in’ to its joint procurement arrangement. 

In 2016, the Government appointed a body called Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA) to make these appointments. PSAA is a subsidiary 

company of the Local Government Association (LGA) and 98% of relevant 

local bodies opted in to the PSAA arrangements for the period from 2018 to 

20231. This included the Alliance authorities.  
 

7.3. Local audit comprises two elements. Firstly, there is an opinion on whether 

the statutory financial accounts, produced in accordance with CIPFA’s Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, are true and fair, in accordance 

with statutory duties. As well as the financial audit, legislation also requires a 

further, value for money opinion from public audit, which includes an 

assessment on whether the auditor is satisfied that the Authority has made 

proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources. Public auditors also have additional powers and duties 

to make Public Interest Reports and Statutory Recommendations, which 

places an additional burden and cost. 
 

7.4. Concern has been growing within local government (and elsewhere) 

regarding the effective provision of external audit services. The rest of this 

report updates the committee on various national reviews affecting local 

public audit and their implications for the Local Authority as well as updates 

on options and the timetable for appointing future external auditors set by 

PSAA. 
 

8. Current Position 

 

8.1. The current local audit environment is a fragile system2. The National Audit 

Office has recently concluded3 that the local audit system has worsened since 

                                                 
1
 The House of Commons Briefing Paper 07420 (April  2021) “Local audit in England” provides a useful overview  

https://researchbriefings.fi les.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7240/CBP-7240.pdf 
2
 PSAA “Summary of the response to PSAA’s consultations on its initial thinking of proposed arrangements for 

the appointing period starting April  2023” https://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Summary-of-
the-response-to-PSAA-consultations-on-its-proposed-arrangements-for-the-appointing-period-starting-April-

2023-FINAL.pdf 

Page 27



  

2019, with the increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit quality 

and doubts over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities 

all highlighting that the situation needs urgent attention. System wide changes 

are required. That is, more work is required nationally to design and 

implement a system for local audit which is more stable, resilient and 

sustainable. This is evidenced partly by the large proportion of local audits 

that are being delivered late. 55% of local authorities’ March 2020 accounts 

had not received an audit opinion by the revised deadline of 30 November 

2020. However, it is also reflected in the number of reviews recently 

commissioned by central Government: 
 

 the Kingman review of audit regulation 

 the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit 

market 

 the Brydon review of the quality and effectiveness of audit 

 the Redmond review of local audit and financial reporting 
 

8.2. Sir John Kingman’s review (of the Financial Reporting Council)4
 

recommended its replacement with a new, better resourced independent 

regulator with significantly expanded powers and objectives. This  new 

regulator is named the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA). 

Since then, the proposal is that ARGA will also have oversight of local public 

audit.  The Competition and Markets Authority (CMA)5 proposed that Audit 

committees should report directly to the ARGA throughout the audit tender 

process and audit engagement (it is not clear whether this would apply to 

local government) and also proposed an operational split of firms’ audit and 

non-audit functions.  Sir Donald Brydon’s considered how the audit process 

and product could be developed to better serve the wider public interest, but 

was focussed primarily on listed companies and credit and insurance firms 

(rather than public sector bodies). The largest impact, though, came from Sir 

Tony Redmond's review into the effectiveness of external audit and 

transparency of financial reporting in local authorities.  
 

9. The Redmond Review 

 

9.1. In summary, the significant findings of Redmond’s review were as follows:  
 

 There was a lack of coherence in local audit arrangements, including no 

coherence in the approach to procure audit and concerns regarding the 

effectiveness of local audit, partly linked to fee structures 

 There was a view that the costs of local audit were less than they should 

be (perhaps by up to 25%) and as a result the quality of auditors has 

                                                                                                                                                         
3
 National Audit Office “Timeliness of local auditor reporting on local government in England, 2020” (March 

2021) https://www.nao.org.uk/report/timeliness -of-local-auditor-reporting-on-local-government-in-england-
2020/ 
4
 Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial -reporting-council-review-2018 

5
 Available at: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5c17cf2ae5274a4664fa777b/Audit_update_paper_S.pdf  

Page 28



  

reduced, because generally they don’t have the experience or knowledge 

of local authorities 

 There was an issue of whether Audit Committees understood various 

issues sufficiently to question and challenge in an effective way and there 

were low numbers of independent Audit Committee Members, with little 

communication between the Audit Committee and Inspectors and no 

formal exchange of views and little relationship to Full Council  

 Internal Audit is not used much by External Audit as the code of practice 

does not require them to liaise with internal audit work  

 Current arrangements make it difficult for the public to properly understand 

what is important in the accounts. More can be done to improve 

transparency of what local authorities do 
 

9.2. As a result, the key recommendations coming from the report were as follows: 
 

 A new ‘Office of Local Audit Regulation’ be established and have 

responsibility for procuring, managing, overseeing and regulating local 

audits 

 Fee structure needs to be revised to reflect the true cost with local audit 

firms 

 At least 1 independent member will be required on each Audit 

Committee.  

 A requirement for the three statutory officers (Monitoring Officer, Section 

151 officer, Head of Paid Service) to meet External Audit annually.  

 Audit Committee members will have a requirement to be trained.  

 Audit completion will move to 30 September from 31 July.  

 An annual report to be presented to the first Council meeting after 30 

September from the External Auditor.  

 Auditors must have skills and training, but also there needs to be training 

in place for Local Authority finance staff.  

 The National Audit Office Code of Practice on Value For Money to be 

endorsed 
 

9.3. The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

initially published a statement in May 2021 which provided further detail on its 

plan to reshape local audit and then in July it produced its more detailed 

response to the recommendations from the Redmond Review.   
 

9.4. A large proportion of Redmond’s recommendations were accepted by 

MHCLG and the department’s response and progress to date is summarised 

in Annex 1 to this report. Importantly, though, MHCLG rejected the proposal 

for a new, independent “systems leader” body, the Office of Local Audit and 

Regulation (OLAR). This body would have had responsibility for procurement, 

contract management, regulation, and oversight of local audit. MHCLG 

appeared concerned with creating a new Audit Commission type body, so 

they have announced that the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority 

(ARGA), which is the new regulator being established to replace the Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC), will be strengthened with new powers over local 

Page 29



  

government audit. The new regulator will contain a standalone local audit unit, 

bringing all regulatory functions into one place. ARGA will also provide annual 

reports on the state of local audit and take over responsibility for the updated 

Code of Local Audit Practice – which are the guidelines Councils are required 

to follow. The government also confirmed that Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA) would continue as the appointing body for local audit, 

in charge of procurement and contract management for local government 

auditors. 
 

9.5. The announcement of a systems leader for local audit was broadly welcomed 

across local government. However, it is difficult to see how MHCLG’s 

proposal to use ARGA will address ongoing concerns regarding audit supply 

and market instability.  Three firms cover over 80% of local audit and a 

withdrawal by one would create considerable instability. Any change to the 

local audit system will need to balance this, including addressing the position 

of the large audit firms and the requirement for well trained, appropriately paid 

external audit staff working on public sector audits, alongside the need for 

higher quality audits in the short and longer term. 

 

9.6. Local audit scale fees reduced by 40% between 2014/15 and 2018/19, whilst 

central government and FTSE100 fees have increased by 20%. That 

reduction in cost seems to have come at the expense of a reduction in quality 

and timeliness (accepting that Covid-19 has also had a substantial impact). 

Until recently, the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice required auditors to give a 

binary opinion on whether the proper value for money (VFM) arrangements 

were in place (or not). Now auditors are required to provide a narrative 

statement on the arrangements in place. This will increase the cost of local 

audit and so Government has provided £15m to help meet the increased cost 

of audit in 2021/22. However, such work has capacity implications for audit 

firms, at a time when there are issues relating to delays in the completion of 

audits and, more broadly, the future pipeline of auditors. 

 

9.7. Irrespective of the changes to VFM arrangements, it seems inevitable that 

any new scale audit fees will need to rise from their current levels. This is 

where PSAA will need to be effective.  
 

10. Public Sector Audit Authority (PSAA) & Procuring a New Auditor 
 

10.1. PSAA’s responsibilities are to appoint auditors to opted in bodies, set scales 

of fees, and manage contracts with audit firms for delivery of external audit 

services to opted in bodies. “Opted in” here refers to the process whereby the 

Local Authority indicates its willingness to sign up to a co-ordinated 

procurement process.  PSAA recently undertook a consultation on its 

proposed approach to the next round of auditor appointments, acknowledging 

that procurement alone cannot resolve the systemic issues faced across the 

local public audit system. PSAA’s intention is to continue prioritising new 

longer-term contracts, which makes sense in terms of providing greater 

certainty for audit firms. It also wants to open up the market to more entrants, 

although the mechanism for doing this is still being debated. 

Page 30



  

  

10.2. However, PSAA’s suggestion that some existing contracts may be extended 

received mixed responses (presumably based primarily on quality concerns 

from Local Authorities as well as audit firm concerns regarding financial 

sustainability).  PSAA also intend to evaluate tender submissions on the basis 

an 80% weighting for the quality aspects and just a 20% weighting for price 

(currently the split is 50:50).  

 

10.3. Local Authorities will need to make important decisions about their external 

audit arrangements for the period commencing from the financial year 

2023/24. In relation to appointing auditors, the Local Authority has the option 

to: 

 arrange its own procurement  

 make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with others 

 join the national collective scheme (currently administered by Public 

Sector Audit Appointments [PSAA]) 
 

10.4. The position is further complicated, as the Government is reviewing the public 

sector procurement regulations, following the UK’s withdrawal from the 

European Union. Generally, the national scheme (if well designed and 

implemented) should be simpler and likely to deliver lower fees with less 

administrative cost and less effort, than would be achievable through a local 

procurement. 
  

10.5. Officers will attend webinars run by PSAA in the Autumn to improve 

understanding about the preparations for the new appointing period including 

the opt-in process and auditor appointment process, as well as seeking to 

increase awareness of PSAA’s role and remit. PSAA will publish a prospectus 

for the proposed, new national scheme in late September 2021 and the Local 

Authority will have until Friday 11th March 2022 to formally respond and 

accept (or decline) the opt-in invitation. Under the Regulations this is a 

decision that needs to be taken by Full Council. A further report will be 

brought to the committee recommending a way forward. 

 

11. View of the Public Accounts Committee 
 

11.1. Despite reviewing the various changes highlighted above, a report from the 

House of Commons Public Accounts Committee (PAC) in July 2021 still casts 

doubt on the integrity of the local government audit market, the ability of the 

current system to deliver audit on time and whether the proposed new 

arrangements will deliver “leadership”.  The PAC adds that there is concern 

about the high risk of collapse for the audit market and what contingency 

plans the government may have. 
 

11.2. It also notes councils have become increasingly unattractive as clients and it 

wants government to work with the regulator and accountancy institutes to 

“accelerate” qualification of new auditors and “build attractive career paths” to 

bolster audit firms. The PAC also doubt whether the proposed oversight 

arrangements for audit will work.  They express concern that as long as 

Page 31



  

functions remains split between the FRC or ARGA managing quality and 

content and the PSAA procuring audit appointments, there will be none of the 

proper systems leadership required (despite Redmond’s recommendations). 

Lastly, the PAC called for the audits to be recalibrated to focus on areas of 

“greatest risk and concern to citizens.” PAC argue that some of the work 

currently undertaken is “disproportionate” to the risk facing councils.  

 

11.3. Certainly the experience across the Alliance is that increased challenges on 

professional valuations on balance sheet items (such as those for property, 

plant and equipment and pensions liabilities), exhorted by the FRC, has 

questionable value to the local taxpayer. They do not feed into general fund 

balances and add little credence to local understanding of the financial 

standing of the local authority, but take up a lot of time and effort. 

 

12. Summary & Conclusions 

 

12.1. It is positive that Government has recognised the systemic issues associated 

with local public audit since the dissolution of the Audit Commission. The 

Redmond review was welcomed as a response to the situation. MHCLG’s 

response to a large number of Redmond’s recommendations remain “in 

progress” or are only partly accepted, so it is difficult to predict how this 

committee will need to respond to any final proposals. A number of the 

recommendations require substantial input from other key stakeholders (for 

example, the Local Government Association, National Audit Office, Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy, Institute of Chartered Accountants 

England & Wales, Financial Reporting Council) and organising this will take 

time. Locally, some areas (such as training for committee members) are 

already in train. Further reports will be required so that the committee can 

respond appropriately to all final recommendations. 

 

12.2. In the short term, the committee will need to consider whether to “opt in” to 

nationally brokered local audit contracts (as it currently does). Initial analysis 

suggests that the PSAA scheme (if well designed and implemented) should 

be simpler and likely to deliver lower fees with less administrative cost and 

less effort, than would be achievable through a local procurement. For this to 

be effective it will also be important that the Alliance has the same external 

auditor for both Councils. A more formal report on the “opt in” decision will 

come to the committee in February 2022 (with a recommendation to Council 

in the same month).        

 

 
 

 

Page 32



 

 

Appendix  A: Table of Redmond review recommendations and MHCLG response / progress  

Action to support immediate market stability (recommendations 5, 6, 8, 10, 11) 

Recommendation December MHCLG Response Progress update 

5. All auditors engaged in local audit 
be provided with the requisite skills 
and training to audit a local authority 
irrespective of seniority. 

Accept; we will work with the ICAEW, 
CIPFA and FRC to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the ICAEW, 
CIPFA and FRC, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a 
working group to deliver this recommendation, which is currently 
considering proposals to deliver it and we will provide an update 
ahead of summer recess. 

6. The current fee structure for local 
audit be revised to ensure that 
adequate resources are deployed to 
meet the full extent of local audit 
requirements. 

Accept In progress. 
 
• We are currently consulting on proposals to make amendments to 
The Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 that will, 
subject to stakeholders’ views, provide Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) (the bulk audit services procurement body) 
with more flexibility to agree fees that more closely match the actual 
costs of audit. 
• We are providing £15 million to principal bodies, both to help 
support affected bodies to meet the anticipated increase in audit fee 
costs in 21/22 and to support with new burdens relating to 
implementing Redmond’s recommendations. We are currently seeking 
views via public consultation on the methodology for distributing this 
funding in the fairest way and our intention is to confirm individual 
allocations as soon as possible after the consultation closes on 18 May. 

P
age 33



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG Response Progress update 

• We have reconfirmed PSAA Ltd as the appointing body ahead of the 
next procurement, and will work closely with them, as well as other 
stakeholders, to ensure alignment in objectives between the 
procurement and the wider local audit system. 

8. Statute be revised so that audit 
firms with the requisite capacity, 
skills and experience are not excluded 
from bidding for local audit work. 

Part accept; we will work with the FRC 
and ICAEW to deliver this 
recommendation, including whether 
changes to statute are required 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the ICAEW 
and FRC, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a 
working group to deliver this recommendation, which is currently 
considering proposals to deliver it and we will provide an update 
ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes reviewing guidance relating to the entry criteria for key 
audit partners (KAPs). 

10. The deadline for publishing 
audited local authority accounts be 
revisited with a view to extending it 
to 30 September from 31 July each 
year. 

Part accept; we will look to extend the 
deadline to 30 September for publishing 
audited local authority accounts for two 
years, and then review 

Delivered. 
 
• Regulations extending the audit publication deadline to 30 
September for 2 years came into force on 31 March 2021. 
• At the end of this period we will review whether there is a continued 
need to have an extended deadline. 

11. The revised deadline for 
publication of audited local authority 
accounts be considered in 
consultation with NHSE/I and DHSC, 
given that audit firms use the same 
auditors on both Local Government 
and Health final accounts work. 

Accept Delivered. 
 
• Regulations extending the audit publication deadline to 30 
September for 2 years came into force on 31 March 2021. 
• At the end of this period we will review whether there is a continued 
need to have an extended deadline. 

P
age 34



 

 

Consideration of system leadership options (recommendations 1, 2, 3, 7, 13, 17) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

1. A new body, the Office of Local Audit and 
Regulation (OLAR), be created to manage, 
oversee and regulate local audit with the 
following key responsibilities: 
 
• procurement of local audit contracts; 
• producing annual reports summarising the 
state of local audit; 
• management of local audit contracts; 
• monitoring and review of local audit 
performance; 
• determining the code of local audit practice; 
and 
• regulating the local audit sector. 
 
2. The current roles and responsibilities relating 
to local audit discharged by the: 
 
• Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA); 
• Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales (ICAEW); 
• FRC/ARGA; and 
• The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) 
to be transferred to the OLAR. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; 
 
• We accept the need for a single organisation to have responsibility for 
leadership of the local audit system, including oversight of the quality 
framework and encouraging competition in the local audit market. 
• We accept that this requires a single body to have responsibility for:  
 
   o Producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit;  
   o Monitoring and review of local audit performance; 
   o Determining the code of local audit practice; and 
   o Regulating the local audit sector. 
 
• We do not accept that a new body needs to be created to undertake 
these functions, and think that these functions, as well as an overarching 
responsibility for system leadership and encouraging competition in the 
local audit market, should be undertaken by the Audit, Reporting and 
Governance Authority (ARGA), set to be established to replace the 
Financial Reporting Council. 
• We do not accept that this body should also have responsibility for 
procurement and management of local audit contracts, and think that 
these functions should continue to be undertaken by PSAA. 
• We will work with stakeholders to refine these proposals ahead of a 
public consultation before summer recess. 

3. A Liaison Committee be established 
comprising key stakeholders and chaired by 
MHCLG, to receive reports from the new 
regulator on the development of local audit. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; we will establish this new Liaison Committee, but think that 
this should be chaired by ARGA as the ‘system leader’ once the new 
arrangements our established. MHCLG will chair this in the intervening 
period. 

P
age 35



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

7. That quality be consistent with the highest 
standards of audit within the revised fee 
structure. In cases where there are serious or 
persistent breaches of expected quality 
standards, OLAR has the scope to apply 
proportionate sanctions. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; we will work with stakeholders to consider whether 
additional sanction powers beyond the audit enforcement procedures 
that ARGA will already have are necessary. 

13. The changes implemented in the 2020 Audit 
Code of Practice are endorsed; OLAR to 
undertake a post implementation review to 
assess whether these changes have led to more 
effective external audit consideration of financial 
resilience and value for money matters. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Accept; we have endorsed the changes to the 2020 Audit Code of Practice, 
and will look to ARGA to undertake a post implementation review to 
assess whether these changes have led to more effective external audit 
consideration of financial resilience and value for money matters in due 
course. 

17. MHCLG reviews its current framework for 
seeking assurance that financial sustainability in 
each local authority in England is maintained. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Accept; MHCLG carries out a range of assurance activity, drawing on local 
authority data and financial metrics and soft intelligence from 
engagement with the sector. The Department has undertaken additional 
data collection in 2020-21 to provide government with robust data on 
local financial pressures in the context of the Covid-19 pandemic, and has 
also implemented a consistent process to engage with local authorities 
facing financial challenges and, where appropriate, provide exceptional 
financial support. 

Enhancing the functioning of local audit, and the governance for responding to its findings 
(recommendations 4, 9, 12, 18) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 

Response 

Progress update 

P
age 36



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

4. The governance arrangements within 
local authorities be reviewed by local 
councils with the purpose of: 
 
• an annual report being submitted to 
Full Council by the external auditor; 
• consideration being given to the 
appointment of at least one independent 
member, suitably qualified, to the Audit 
Committee; and 
• formalising the facility for the CEO, 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) to meet with the Key Audit 
Partner at least annually. 

Accept; we will work with 
the LGA, NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

9. External Audit recognises that 
Internal Audit work can be a key 
support in appropriate circumstances 
where consistent with the Code of Audit 
Practice. 

Accept; we will work with 
the NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

12. The external auditor be required to 
present an Annual Audit Report to the 
first Full Council meeting after 30 
September each year, irrespective of 
whether the accounts have been 
certified; OLAR to decide the framework 
for this report. 

Accept; we will work with 
the LGA, NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this 
recommendation, including 
whether changes to statute 
are required 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 

P
age 37



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

and audit firms. 

18. Key concerns relating to service and 
financial viability be shared between 
Local Auditors and Inspectorates 
including Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission and HMICFRS prior to 
completion of the external auditor’s 
Annual Report. 

Accept; we will work with 
other departments and the 
NAO to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

Improving transparency of local authorities’ accounts to the public (recommendations 19, 20, 21, 22) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

19. A standardised statement of service information 
and costs be prepared by each authority and be 
compared with the budget agreed to support the 
council tax/precept/levy and presented alongside the 
statutory accounts. 

Accept; we will work 
with CIPFA to deliver 
this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

20. The standardised statement should be subject to 
external audit. 

Accept; we will work 
with CIPFA and the NAO 
to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

P
age 38



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

21. The optimum means of communicating such 
information to council taxpayers/service users be 
considered by each local authority to ensure access 
for all sections of the communities. 

Accept; we will work 
with the LGA and CIPFA 
to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

22. CIPFA/LASAAC be required to review the 
statutory accounts, in the light of the new 
requirement to prepare the standardised statement, 
to determine whether there is scope to simplify the 
presentation of local authority accounts by removing 
disclosures that may no longer be considered to be 
necessary. 

Accept; we will look to 
CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• CIPFA/LASAAC has agreed a new Strategic Implementation Plan 
that includes delivery of this recommendation. 

 P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
  

Item  
Nov 

 2021* 
Dec 

 2021* 
Feb 

 2022 
June 
2022 

Sept 
 2021 

Details  

INTERNAL AUDIT       

Internal Audit Progress Report      
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information. 

Annual Audit Plan    
  To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan. 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
   

 
To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment. 

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA  
   

 
To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 

the Council’s system of internal audit. 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

   
 To consider updates to the formal document that 

defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. (as required) 

EXTERNAL AUDIT       

Audit Committee Update  

 
 

  

 

 

A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 

consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda. 

Audit  Plan 

  
 

  Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 

consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work 

Audit Findings Report   
  

 
To consider the external auditor’s report to those 
charged with governance on issues arising from the 

audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion. 

Auditor’s Annual Report 
 

  
  To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 

their overall assessment of the Council. 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
  

 
  To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 

management processes. 

* Dates to be confirmed  

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 11



Item  
Nov 

 2021* 

Dec 

 2021* 

Feb 

 2022 

June 

 2022 

Sept 

 2021 
Details  

FINANCE       

Statement of Accounts   
  

 
To review and approve the Council’s annual 

Statement of Accounts. 

Treasury Management Update      
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management position to date and the projected 
outturn. 

Annual Treasury Management Report      

To recommend to Council for approval the annual 

Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators. 

Treasury Management Strategy  
 

 
 

 
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

Financial Management Code     
 

 
Self-assessment against the principles of the FM 
Code. 

CORPORATE       

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)  
   

 
To review and approve the Annual Governance 
Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence. 

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 

 

  
  Report on progress made against the actions raised 

as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process. 

Risk Management Update 
 

   
 Report on developments in the Council’s risk 

management arrangements. 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

   
 Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 

February) 

Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
 

    To consider updates to the Council’s Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy. (as required) 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

 
   

 To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures. (as 

required) 

Whistleblowing Policy 
 

   
 To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 

Policy. (as required) 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE       

Agree Programme of Work      To agree future work programme of A&R Committee. 

Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee 

inc. Terms of Reference 
 

   
 

To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

* Dates to be confirmed  

P
age 42


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A

	9 Redmond Review Update
	Appendix

	11 Work Programme

